
TENTERDEN TOWN COUNCIL  

Town Hall, 24 High Street, Tenterden, Kent. TN30 6AN 
 

Website: www.tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01580 762271 

 

 

Email: townhall@tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk  
Facsimile: 01580 765647 

 

 

Tuesday, 7 July 2020 
MEETING OF THE TOWN COUNCIL 

 
Notice is given that a Virtual meeting of the Town Council will be held on 

MONDAY, 13TH JULY, 2020 at 7.00 pm. 
 

All Councillors are summoned to attend for the purpose of considering and 
resolving upon the business to be transacted as set out hereunder. For this 
meeting robes will be worn. 

 
Phil Burgess, Town Clerk. 

Councillors Serving: 
M. Carter, V. Cole, J. Crawford, Mrs. J. Curteis (Mayor), Mrs. S.  Ferguson, Miss A. Gardner, M. Hickmott, 
C. Knowles, Dr.  L. Lovelidge, K. Mulholland, J. Nelson, R. Parkin, R. Quinton, Mrs. P. Smith, A. Sugden and 
Mrs. K. Walder 

AGENDA 

 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.  

 
2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.  

 

3.   MINUTES. 
To consider and, if approved, confirm and sign the minutes of the Town 

Council meeting held on 11th May 2020 and Special Town Council meeting 
held on 8th June 2020 as correct records. 
 

4.   MATTERS ARISING.  
 

5.   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND COUNCILLORS. 
Residents may speak as of right on any matter for no more than 3 minutes subject to stating their 
full name and address before speaking. 

 

6.   COMMITTEE REPORTS. 
To receive, and if approved, adopt the decisions, recommendations and 
reports of the committees as described hereunder; 
Subject to any specific questions or objections, the Minutes and Reports of the under-mentioned 
Committees will be taken as *read and, if duly seconded at this meeting, the delegated decisions 
within those minutes will be approved and adopted (subject to any inaccuracies in the minutes being 
identified later by those committees) as part of the proceedings of this section of the Town Council 
meeting. The following committee recommendations listed below shall now be voted on by a show of 
hands; *if circulated to Councillors no later than the day of service of the summons to attend the 
scheduled meeting. 

 
Internal Committee; 11th May 2020 and 8th June 2020. 

 

 
External Committee; 11th May 2020, 11th May 2020 (Special), and 

8th June 2020. 

 

 

Planning; 4th May 2020, 11th May 2020 (Special), and 1st June 
2020. 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
 

7.   COMMUNITY WARDEN. 
No Report.  
 

8.   KENT POLICE. 
Monthly update report. * 

 (Pages 1 - 12) 
 

9.   REPORTS FROM APPOINTED TRUSTEES AND FROM COUNCIL 

REPRESENTATIVES ON OTHER ORGANISATIONS. 
To note any written reports from outside organisations. * 

 (Pages 13 - 20) 
 

10.   LETTER OF APPRECIATION. 

To consider sending letters of appreciation (personally signed by the 
Town Mayor) to all those who volunteered with Helping in Tenterden to 

assist in the Covid response. 
 

11.   MAYORAL ANNOUNCEMENTS.  
 

 

End. 
 
Attachments and tabled documents can be obtained from the Town Clerk’s office or downloaded from www.tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk. 



Local PCSO Monthly Update July 2020. 
 
 

I am your local Police Community Support Officer for your area. For 
those of you that don’t know me, my name is PCSO Katherine 
Richards, but most people call me Kate. I like to keep you updated on 
what’s going on in the areas that I cover and what I have been up 
to.  The last few weeks I have been tutoring a couple of our new 
PCSO’s you may have seen out with me; now I have PCSO Kyle 
Farnfield.  
With things starting to get back to a bit of normally, the towns and 
villages are starting get busier and with more shops and pubs opening 
in the next few days, please still remember the government 
guidelines about social distancing and staying safe. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
It’s been lovely seeing families and communities starting to meet  back up for days out in 
this fabulous weather, within the guidelines. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 8



Other information: 

Fraud 
Please find below the latest advice from our Fraud Office : 
With the development of Track and Trace, several people 
have asked about advice around how this works. 
Therefore, please find below the official advice from the 
GOV.UK website on how the system works and advice on 
how to avoid being the victim of any possible scams as a 
result of the implementation of this system. 

When we contact you 

If the NHS test and trace service contacts you, the service 
will use text messages, email or phone. 

All texts or emails will ask you to sign into the NHS test and trace contact-tracing website. 

If NHS test and trace calls you by phone, the service will be using a single phone number: 
0300 013 5000. 

All information you provide to the NHS test and trace service is held in strict confidence and 
will only be kept and used in line with the Data Protection Act 2018. 

Contact tracers will: 

 call you from 0300 013 5000 
 send you text messages from ‘NHS’ 
 ask for your full name and date of birth to confirm your identity, and postcode to 

offer support while self-isolating 
 ask if you are experiencing any coronavirus symptoms 
 provide advice on what you must do as you have been in contact with someone who 

has tested positive for coronavirus 

Contact tracers will never: 

 ask you to dial a premium rate number to speak to us (for example, those starting 09 
or 087) 

 ask you to make any form of payment or purchase a product of any kind 
 ask for any details about your bank account 
 ask for your social media identities or login details, or those of your contacts 
 ask you for any passwords or PINs, or ask you to set up any passwords or PINs over 

the phone 
 disclose any of your personal or medical information to your contacts 
 provide medical advice on the treatment of any potential coronavirus symptoms 
 ask you to download any software to your PC or ask you to hand over control of your 

PC, smartphone or tablet to anyone else 
 ask you to access any website that does not belong to the government or NHS 

Page 2

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcontact-tracing.phe.gov.uk%2F&data=02%7C01%7CKatherine.Richards%40kent.police.uk%7C54c6d2b7f2df44affc3608d806c03b75%7Cf31b07f09cf940db964d6ff986a97e3d%7C0%7C0%7C637266769993933422&sdata=ZRcJ6bQhZF3ncieJxr0oxJKu9XfqBgk%2Bk3hituY9koI%3D&reserved=0


For the full guidance/information please check the GOV.UK website - 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/nhs-test-and-trace-how-it-works  

Remember our advice 

If in doubt use our own A, B, C of scam awareness: 
A- Never Assume a caller, email or text is genuine. 
B-   Never Believe a caller, email or text is genuine. 
C-   Always Confirm by contacting a trusted number, family member, friend, your bank’s 
fraud department or the police to check if it’s genuine. 
 

Scam 1 – Scam calls impersonating Police. 
 
Please be aware of scammers impersonating Police. 
 
3 people were called in the Folkestone area recently by scammers impersonating Police 
Officers. In one call they asked if they knew a person who had been arrested using their 
Barclay Card and in the other 2 calls, they stated that people had been arrested for Fraud. 
None of those called were taken in by this and disconnected the calls and contacted Police. 
 
If you receive a call from someone claiming to be the Police and you are not sure if it is a 
genuine call. Then obtained their details and call 101. Never call a number that they supply 
and try to use an alternative telephone to the one that you were called on. If you cannot use 
an alternative telephone, then either wait 5 minutes to call using the same phone or before 
ringing 101, call a family member to make sure that the line has been cleared, as Fraudsters 
will stay on the phone and you could yourself speaking to them again. 
 
Remember, the Police will never ask you for passwords, Pin numbers or ask you to remove 
cash to give to an investigator or courier as part of an investigation. 
 
 
 

Page 3

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Fguidance%2Fnhs-test-and-trace-how-it-works&data=02%7C01%7CKatherine.Richards%40kent.police.uk%7C54c6d2b7f2df44affc3608d806c03b75%7Cf31b07f09cf940db964d6ff986a97e3d%7C0%7C0%7C637266769993943411&sdata=Wj1ti7pKPt54cSfZaT3r%2FvCp%2BBtk1q2e4g2NTODLkEw%3D&reserved=0


 

 
 
 
SCAM 2 – NETFLIX Phishing email 
 
The below email was received this week and is a new phishing 
email with scammers impersonating Netflix. It asks you to click on 
a link and takes you to a long scam email to try and obtain your 
personal data. 
Please be on the lookout for this and if received, do not click on 
the link and please forward  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Remember Take Five as well 
 
Stop -Taking a moment to stop and think before parting with your money or information 
could keep you safe. 
 
Challenge -Could it be fake? It’s ok to reject, refuse or ignore any requests. Only criminals 
will try to rush or panic you. 
 
Protect - Contact your bank immediately if you think you’ve fallen for a scam and report it 
to Action Fraud. 
 
Report scams at www.actionfraud.police.uk  
 

 

Page 4

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.actionfraud.police.uk%2F&data=02%7C01%7CKatherine.Richards%40kent.police.uk%7C54c6d2b7f2df44affc3608d806c03b75%7Cf31b07f09cf940db964d6ff986a97e3d%7C0%7C0%7C637266769993943411&sdata=i5w8qM%2BF6DsLg8B4L0AXKl%2BarHAsmU16U7LGEjVJl4Y%3D&reserved=0


Neighbourhood Watch updates. 
 
From Peter New – Police Volunteer and NHW Team 
member. 
 
As in previous months I am delighted to write in 
support of my PCSO colleagues who serve 
the community tirelessly and as I wrote before it has 
been a very challenging 4 months. I have especially felt 
for my colleagues as they pick their way through these 
changes and easing of lockdown rules which and let us 

be kind and say can be somewhat confusing. 
 
Each step of the coronavirus lockdown has produced “business opportunities” for the 
criminal world. I am sure when a clear position for the when and where of wearing 
facemasks is published that will be seized on also. 
Having said that we must retain many of the good things that emerged from this period and 
a greater awareness of where our vulnerable people in the community are and the support 
that they need cannot be a bad thing or an event to lose. The very good community spirit 
that has grown during these weeks must also be retained. Many of the crimes that have 
been reduced during the period must not return and blight communities again. 
 
As life eases back to normal we must match the criminal activity with the best prevention 
advice, warnings and alerts plus crime reports which can be used to ensure the community 
is as safe and secure as possible. 
My Neighbourhood Watch recruitment has progressed steadily during the coronavirus 
period and now recruitment in the community can be more easily carried out with a risk 
assessed approach and keeping within the social distancing rules and guidance.  
 
I have been in constant touch with PCSO’s feeding in intelligence from the community 
where I can and although our activities have been somewhat curtailed, we look forward to 
working together again soon to ensure the communities get the best possible service we 
can provide. 
 
For Recruitment to Neighbourhood Watch please contact me on peternew1@aol.com. 
 
I recruit across the whole Ashford District and many of you are already members with me. 
Others among you are in other NHW Schemes and please continue to support your local 
coordinators as much as you can. 
“The more we are the stronger we are, and Crime cannot flourish in a community that 
cares and is alert and vigilant at all times” 
 
At present I am carrying out several pilot schemes with housing developments “new build” 
sites, to ensure as a new community is built the NHW scheme grows with the development 
and new residents, many of whom are not from Ashford, are NHW members from their first 
days in their new home. Ashford on a Friday is larger than the previous Monday and 

Page 5

mailto:peternew1@aol.com


although house building halted during the lockdown it is full steam ahead now and many 
new residents to meet and greet. 
 
MAIN AREAS TO BE ALERT AND VIGILANT WITH ARE: 
 
1 Main property take care to secure all the doors and windows that have been open during 
this lovely weather, especially if just "popping out". 
 
2. Nothing to be left on show in parked vehicles and ensure they are secure. Vans with tools 
and equipment left in them, especially overnight, remain vulnerable. 
 
3 Sheds, garages and outbuildings please keep secure. Consider chaining items together so 
removal of an item is extremely difficult 
 
4. Care with what is left on show in front and rear gardens especially children’s bikes and 
toys. 
 
5 Care with animals in the heat and especially alert to recent dog thefts across the Ashford 
District. 
If you drive to the countryside and woodland areas for dog walks be very careful your dog is 
always in sight and again be very careful what you leave in a parked vehicle. Remote rural 
car parks are targeted by thieves. 
 
6 As always please be careful with SCAMS which come by Mobiles, Landlines, Emails, 
Letters and indeed now once again by visitors to your doorsteps in the shape of Bogus 
callers. 
This is about giving yourself time when dealing with these matters. If you are not sure, STOP 
and CHECK and then CHECK AGAIN. 
 
Finally, across social media I often read of people saying ”It’s not worth calling the police as 
they do nothing!” or ranting and raving about criminal actions but then no further clear 
message of whether the police have been informed. 
Don’t make those judgements. 
Crime in progress or threat of danger call 999. 
 
People acting suspiciously around property or vehicles call the police and use 999 you feel a 
crime is imminent. 
 
To give the police information, intelligence or to report matters of a nonurgent nature call 
101 or use the online reporting system. 
Finally, very often criminals are known in a community, but people are too nervous or 
frightened to call the police and name them.  In that case then use CRIME STOPPERS ON 
0800 555 111 where you can give information anonymously and in total and absolute 
confidence. 
 
Stay safe, secure, alert, vigilant and thank you for your support which I really appreciate  
 

Page 6



Take Care and stay well. 
Peter 
 
Peter New (peternew1@aol.com) 
91725 Kent  Police Volunteer and NHW TEAM member. 
 
 
 

Safety advice for horse owners 
 
Safety advice is being provided to horse owners following reports of equine equipment 
being stolen.  
Across May 2020 Kent Police received 23 reports of equipment, including riding tack, 
carriages and trailers, being stolen. Most incidents have taken place at rural locations in 
West Kent, including Cranbrook, Marden, East Farleigh, Sevenoaks and Paddock Wood. 
Two offences have also taken place in Sittingbourne and individual reports have been 
received from Faversham, Charing and Biddenden. 
The Chief Constable’s Crime Squad is conducting ongoing enquiries into the offences and 
have arrested six men.  
Four of these men, who are aged between 22 and 25, were arrested in Maidstone on 18 
May on suspicion of burglary and they have been bailed, pending further enquiries, until 22 
July.  
A further two men, aged 22 and 27, were arrested in Cranbrook on 6 May on suspicion of 
being equipped to steal items. They have been released, pending further enquiries.   
Officers within the Rural Task Force are also working closely with partner agencies, including 
Kent Horse Watch, to share safety advice and offer to security mark saddles.  
Sergeant Darren Walshaw, from the Rural Task Force, said: ‘We do not underestimate the 
impact this type of crime has on victims and are committed to preventing further instances 
occurring.  
 
‘Rural crime is very seasonal, and we are at a time of the year where we know thieves target 
outbuildings, like stables.  
‘Most offenders are opportunistic and will target a site where they have identified a 
vulnerability. That means there are measures owners can take which can reduce their 
chances of being targeted.  
 
‘I would encourage those with horses, or anyone who stores items in outbuildings, to bear 
in mind the following advice and take reasonable precautions to protect their property.’ 

 
Safety advice 
 

Protecting equipment: 
 

• Vehicles or plant kept outside should be locked with their keys stored in a safe. Also 
consider fitting them with wheel clamps, ground anchors or hitch locks. 

Page 7

mailto:peternew1@aol.com


• Security-mark important items, including vehicles. The mark should be unique, in a 
non-obvious place and include your post code and house name or number. 

• Take a photograph of items, including any identifying marks, and keep them 
somewhere safe along with details including serial, chassis and model numbers. 

 
Keep land, and buildings, secure: 
 

• Check the perimeter of your land and make sure boundaries are as secure as 
possible. 

• If possible, remove any access points that are no longer used and establish a single 
gated entrance and exit. 

• Consider installing an entry control system, such as an intercom or keypad entry.  
• Consider using natural boundaries, for example thorny hedges or deep ditches, to 

help restrict access by people or vehicles. 
• Use good quality padlocks with covers so they cannot be cut off easily. 
• Use locking posts or temporary obstructions to control wide access points to yards. 
• Keep doors and windows shut and locked when not in use. 

 
 
 
Anyone who is a victim of crime is encouraged to contact Kent Police through its website or 
by calling 101. If a crime is in progress, dial 999.  
 
 

 
 

Officers issue 365 tickets in Kent as part of national anti-speeding campaign 
 
A national campaign aimed at tackling speeding motorists resulted in Kent Police officers 
issuing 365 tickets to people caught driving over the limit. 
 
The operation was carried out on roads across the county between Monday 25 May and 
Sunday 7 June 2020, with speed cameras catching an additional 4,443 drivers breaking the 
law. 
 
Officers from the Roads Policing Unit, including the Commercial Vehicle Unit and Road 
Safety Team, carried out the enforcement activity alongside volunteers from the Kent 
Special Constabulary. 
 
A number of other drivers were also prosecuted for non-speeding offences such as driving 
while using a mobile phone or without a seatbelt. 
 
Chief Inspector Rhiannan Pepper, Head of Kent Police’s Roads Policing Unit, said: ‘With 
Covid-19 lockdown measures being gradually eased and traffic volumes starting to grow as a 
result, this national operation was an important way to remind people of the dangers of 
speeding – especially as many have not been out on the roads for quite some time. 
 

Page 8



‘Figures show that an average of 17 people are killed and 126 are seriously injured every 
month in the UK in collisions in which speeding is believed to have been a significant factor. 
The faster people drive, the less time they have to react to unforeseen hazards or mistakes 
from other drivers and the greater the impact any collision may be. 
 
‘The lifting of lockdown measures also coincides with better weather and lighter evenings, 
with more cyclists and joggers on the road than there might otherwise be and therefore 
more people at risk of serious harm by those who choose to break the speed limit. 
 
‘Please rest assured that our efforts to tackle dangerous driving happen all year round, and 
we will continue to prosecute speeding motorists via a range of methods including mobile 
and static speed cameras and in-car technology, to help keep Kent’s roads as safe as 
possible for everyone.’ 
 
We have also been listening to our local parishes and residents who have been highlighting 
areas where they are having problems with vehicles speeding through there areas. We try 
and help where we can and have been lucky enough to have been able to tap in with some 
of our local officers, Traffic officers including Special Inspector Richards. Tickets have been 
given as well as words of advice. Residents that have seen us, have been very grateful. It has 
also been nice to see that our Community Speed Watch teams have started coming back 
out, these are valued members of our communities that make your roads safe, and without 
their help we couldn’t do this. 
I have been asked by residents about how they set up a Speed Watch team in their villages, 
if you are interested please speak to your local parish council. If there are any Parishes that 
do not have a Speed Watch set up and would like more information please contact the 
community speed watch team to volunteer, to start a scheme, for support or assistance, or 
to arrange safety awareness training or have a risk assessment carried out at a new site. To 
set up a group ideally you need between 3-4 willing volunteers. We also have 2 Speed 
Watch units at Ashford Station which we can lend out to Parishes to use if they do not have 
their own equipment. 
Any further information please 
 
Call: 01622 653781 
Email: speedwatch@kent.police.uk 
 
 

Page 9

mailto:speedwatch@kent.police.uk


   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Kent residents are urged to protect their homes from opportunistic burglars 
 

 
As temperatures start to rise, so do the chances of criminals targeting properties with open windows 
and insecure doors. 
 
Following a number of recent burglaries, Kent Police is taking the opportunity to remind everyone of 
the simple steps that can be taken to keep homes safe from would-be offenders. 
 
Insecure properties provide the ideal environment for thieves and something as simple as closing 
your windows and doors can prevent such an intrusive crime from taking place. 

 
Detective Chief Inspector Lopa McDermott, who leads the Chief 
Constable’s Crime Squad, said: ‘It is only natural that people 
should want to open their windows and doors to keep cool when 
the temperatures are high but it is also important that we make 
people aware of the risks. 
 
‘It only takes a few minutes when you’re in your garden for 
someone to climb through an open window and steal your 
belongings. Doors should never be left unlocked if you plan to 
spend the day outside. 
 
‘We certainly don’t want to cause alarm, and no one should feel 
unsafe in their home, however it is important that we ask the 
public to take extra precautions whilst we do everything within 
our power to protect people and seek those responsible for such 
crimes.’ 
 

Page 10



Detectives are investigating several reports of burglary including one incident in Beauxfield Road, 
Whitfield near Dover on Thursday 18 June 2020 where cash was stolen from a wallet inside the 
home of a victim who had been gardening at the front of the house. The suspect is thought to have 
entered through a patio door at the back of the property. 
 
In Ashford on Wednesday 17 June a property was targeted in Hythe Road, Willesborough, between 
1.30pm and 4.30pm. The resident was in the front garden at the time and when they returned to the 
house, they found drawers and cupboards had been ransacked and money and jewellery was 
missing. 
 
A van has been reported stolen from outside a home in Amhurst Bank Road, Pembury, Tunbridge 
Wells. The keys were taken from inside the accommodation between 11pm and midnight on 7 June 
2020. 
 
In Borstal Road, Rochester a house was targeted overnight on 5 June where a designer bag, a purse 
containing cards and cash, a phone and an iPad were reported stolen. The suspect is thought to have 
entered the property through an insecure door while the victim was asleep upstairs.  
 
DCI McDermott added: ‘Burglary has a devastating effect on victims. It robs people of more than just 
money. Sentimental items can’t be replaced and the emotional damage it causes can stay with 
victims for a long time.  
 
‘There will always be a minority who will break the law so, whether it’s your house, business, flat or 
shed, always keep it secure.’ 
 
Safety advice 
 
- Lock your doors and windows at night and during the day when you’re not in the vicinity (even if 
you are just popping upstairs for something). 
 
- Lock your back doors and windows when you answer the front door. Some burglars use distraction 
techniques. 
 
- Consider fitting extra security measures such as spy holes, door chains, door locks and intruder 
alarms. 
 
- Install your own CCTV covering the front and back of your property. 
 
- Keep receipts and serial numbers safe. 
 
- Photograph and insure expensive or unique items. 
 
- Don’t keep valuables on display, consider installing a safe that could be bolted to the ground or 
wall. Or use a safety deposit box at your bank. 
 
- Use timer switches on lights and radios to make your home look occupied. 
 
- Keep gates, boundaries and sheds secure. 
 
- Lock away bikes, tools and garden items that could be taken or used to break into your home. 
 

Page 11



- Don’t leave spare keys hidden outside under pots or in garages. 
 
- Think before posting holiday pictures on social media as it can make burglars aware the house is 
empty. 
 
- Keep gardens tidy and pruned to remove good hiding places for burglars and install security lights. 
 
- Cancel milk or paper deliveries when you’re away and make sure your grass is cut, these are some 
things that won’t make your home stand out. 
 
 

 
Kate Richards PCSO 46059656 
Community Safety Unit| Ashford Police Station | East Division 
 

Page 12



TENTERDEN BOWLS CLUB 

Dear Cllr Smith, 
  
I write to update you on the current situation regarding the Bowls Club. 
  
You will recall that in January thieves crashed through the gates of the club and drove over the 
green causing severe rutting to the surface.  I am pleased to report that a new gate has been 
installed and after much care and attention the green is returned to a good condition and is 
playing well.  All repairs have come out of club funds.  Might I suggest that the construction of a 
concrete or brick flower bed in front of the new gates would prevent similar vandalism occurring. 
  
Despite the 'lockdown' due to the pandemic work on the maintenance of the green, its surrounds, 
the buildings and the irrigation system have continued with members attending either on their 
own or in two's or three's, safe distancing and taking all Government recommended precautions. 
Mainly that work has consisted of specialist green care, both of the clubs mowers required blade 
sharpening/maintenance, were sent off for this and were then locked down elsewhere due to the 
introduction of 'Pandemic' restrictions, luckily we were able to borrow a good quality mower until 
ours were repaired and returned. Other than that general mowing of the surround on a weekly 
basis, weeding and caring of plant/flower beds, re-felting of the equipment shed roof/ localised 
repair of felt to toilet block roof and excavating to expose a leak on the irrigation system pipework 
and specialist repair of same. 
  
The Bowls Club have followed 'Bowls England' guidance with regard to Government requirements 
concerning club activities and are pleased to notify you that limited play has re-commenced at the 
club.  We are playing singles matches only with a limit of a maximum 6 players using the green at 
any time, using alternate rinks so that safe distancing can be adhered to, with only the basic 
equipment used and this sanitised before and after use; regular washing of hands is also 
promoted. Only limited use of the clubhouse is allowed at present, with the changing rooms and 
equipment shed out of bounds. 
  
Terry Joint, our Competitions Secretary has arranged a programme of competitive matches and a 
mini league amongst ourselves to ensure those that want, are getting some games to play; a 
considerable number of our players have decided not to play at all this season, some not signing 
on either. We are not playing any matches against other clubs at all. 
  
As a consequence, our membership has dropped this season, which is very frustrating as we had 9 
new enquiries for membership before the season had even started and a good number since, but 
a large appeal of joining the club is meeting people, which under the current situation we are 
unable satisfy; we have just recently had 3 new members sign up and several of our previous 
members have re-joined.  Our current membership is 49. 
  
In turn, this has affected our income, with less signing on fees, no match fees or raffle income and 
no ability to hold fund raisers or tournaments.  We can only wait and hope that things improve as 
the season progresses; once more people can congregate together we shall organise fund raising 
events.  This is an area where a new clubhouse would be a great asset. 
  
Thank you for your interest. 
  
Phil Jeffrey - Committee Member, 
Tenterden Bowls Club. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 9



Tenterden and 

District Museum 

Newsletter  
Inside this issue 

From the Curator…       1-2 

 

Social Media…                2 

 

Evolution of the Poor      

Law…                           3-4 

 

From the Curator 
Debbie Greaves FRGS, FRSA 

 
Thank you all for keeping in touch and for your ongoing commitment to 

Tenterden and District Museum. Due to everyone’s endeavours the        

accounts are up to date, our social media is active, and the Museum’s 

school liaison is ready to go.  Even a pandemic cannot stop us! 

 

Thanks to you all, our finances are in great shape and our Treasurer does  

an excellent job keeping us on budget and updating us with the figures. 

 

I feel an obligation to the community to open, if we can. It appears that July 

4
th

 will be the earliest any museum can open, and we may delay until     

Monday 27
th

 July once the school summer holidays have begun. 

 

Our over-riding concern will be to keep the steward and the visitors socially 

distanced and to ensure all health and safety measures are rigorously     

adhered to - but easy to comply with. I will  not go into all the detail here 

but: 

 we will not be taking any cash,  

 visitors will be allowed in for free, 

 the shop will be closed.  

 

We will only open for three hours a day, with one steward, or two from the 

same household, per day and no hand-overs. Separately, the Museum 

kitchen, WC and stewards’ station will be cleansed daily. At the same time; 

all switches, surfaces, and the banisters will be cleaned daily before the 

steward arrives. 

 

Fourteen stewards have agreed to help re-open, which is terrific, and 

means we can potentially be open every day for the remainder of the     

season until 4
th

 October. 

 

Cleaning products and sanitizer have been ordered. The only issue is supply 

and there is a considerable delay on some items – namely sanitizer         

Newsletter Date: 

July, 2020 

The dogmas of the   

quiet past are             

inadequate to the 

stormy present. The  

occasion is piled high 

with difficulty, and we 

must rise with the     

occasion. As our case is 

new, so we must think 

anew and act anew. 

 

Abraham Lincoln 

Page 14



2 

dispensers – which will be key to us opening safely. Waiting for these items may delay our opening but this will 

give us the opportunity to learn from other similar venues how their initial openings go. 

 

The other big question is… will there be any visitors? My personal experience is that people are still, rightly, 

cautious about going out and mingling, so we don’t anticipate many visitors until families come in the summer 

holidays. 

 

All in all, the outlook for Tenterden and District Museum is good, given our very supportive stewards and   

membership, and our quiet but engaging Museum.  

 

 

‘I am what time, circumstance, history, have made of me, certainly, 

but I am also, much more than that. So are we all.’  

James Baldwin 

Social Media 
Dominique Huxley 
  

Over the past twelve months, interest and interaction across all three of our social media sites has increased 

which is very encouraging.  Posts have become more frequent and photographs of the High Street, businesses, 

houses or stories of the people of Tenterden are the most popular.   

 

During the open season, we posted photographs of some of the exhibits in our Museum along with details of 

current exhibitions or events and also of some of the lovely gifts we have for sale.  During the closed season we 

decided to post a mixture of photographs from the archive and some photographs taken of the items on         

display.  We experimented with the posts to see which ones gained the most comments or likes. It was hoped 

this would encourage more engagement across the social media sites and then it was planned to have a build up 

to our opening day and encourage as many local people as possible to come to the Museum this year.    

 

We were also hoping to encourage our visitors to the Museum to post photographs and their comments on 

Google and Tripadvisor after their visit so that we could raise our profile in Tenterden as a tourist highlight and 

also to encourage some of the many people who stay overnight in Tenterden to attend a wedding to come and 

have some quiet time in our lovely Museum.    

 

After the lockdown was announced, we continued to post photographs that are in our archive and I’m pleased to 

say that this has not slowed down the interest with comments and questions. We are currently planning to  

showcase our amazing volunteers and then post details of their favourite items in the Museum.  If this is         

successful, we would like to make this a series throughout the year. If the Museum is able to open this year, we 

hope that this increased interest on our social media sites will reflect in the numbers of the local population  

coming to visit us.  

 

Thank you to all of you who engage with our sites - keep posting your comments, and please get in contact if you 

have any suggestions!    

Page 15



3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Evolution of the Poor Law from 1349-1601 
Sue Hatt 
 

This year is the four hundredth anniversary of the sailing of the Mayflower. In earlier editions of the newsletter 

two extracts from Diane Thomas’s dissertation entitled ‘Motivations for the “Great Migration” to New England 

1628-1640: the Case of the Hercules, March 1634/1635’ were published. The dissertation explored the complex 

reasons for the migration – religious and economic causes were highlighted as being significant. This article will 

review Poor Laws in England up to the Elizabethan Poor Law which held sway until the New Poor Law Act of 1834 

as this will provide part of the context for the migration.  

 

In 1349 the Ordinance of Labourers was passed by Edward III as the Black Death had meant that the surviving 

agricultural workers were in great demand. The established feudal system was under threat. The Ordinance and 

later acts such as the Statute of Labourers (1351) legislated that everyone who could work did; that wages stayed 

at pre-plague levels, and the cost of food was controlled. This act was passed to stop labourers fleeing the      

estates that they worked upon and becoming freemen. In 1360 a supplementary law was passed pronouncing 

that if any man ran away from his employment and was recovered by his employee he could be branded with an 

‘F’  for falsity on his forehead. The Statute of Cambridge was passed in 1388 and it placed restrictions on the 

movement of labourers and beggars and also decreed that children that were employed in agriculture before the 

age of twelve could not be put to any trade. 

 

The Tudors began the codification of poor laws.   

Henry VII instructed the passing of the Vagabonds 

and Beggars Act in 1495 which ordered that 

‘vagabonds, idle and suspected persons shall be set in 

the stocks for three days and three nights and have 

none other sustenance but bread and water and then 

shall be put out of Town. Every beggar suitable to 

work shall resort to the Hundred where he last 

dwelled, is best known, or was born and there remain 

upon the pain aforesaid’. 

 

In 1531 the Vagabonds Act directed local JPs, whose 

powers and duties increased throughout the          

sixteenth century, to assign areas in which the      

licensed poor, classed impotent poor as they were 

disabled, sick or elderly, could beg. If they did not beg 

in that area, they were to be imprisoned for two days 

and nights in the stocks. Able-bodied unemployed 

either starved or broke the law.  

 

The Reformation compounded the problem of      

poverty as monasteries had provided some of the 

infrastructure used to provide for the poor. The    

Vagabond’s Act of 1547 was draconian and many JPs 

would not enforce it. Any able-bodied person who 

was out of work for more than three days was to be 

branded with a V and sold into slavery for two years. 

Other offences by the same person would lead to a 

life of slavery. Vagabond children could be claimed as 

apprentices and held until the age of twenty-four if a 
From Stephen Batman’s Christall Glasse, 1569 

Page 16



4 

Mystery Object 

boy, or twenty if a girl. Should they attempt to escape this        

apprenticeship they would be subject to enslavement for the rest 

of the time. 

 

In the Elizabethan era a distinction started to be made between 

vagabonds and those unemployed through no fault of their own. 

The Act for the Relief of the Poor (1563) stipulated that all parish 

residents, who were able to, should contribute to collections for 

the poor. The Act also categorised the poor: the deserving poor – 

old, poor, sick, who would be given outdoor relief,  which took the 

form of clothing, food or money; the deserving unemployed, who 

would be given indoor relief in alms houses, orphanages or    

workhouses, the sick were to be cared for in hospitals and the 

young given apprenticeships; the undeserving poor, who turned to 

a life of crime or became beggars—these were treated harshly as 

criminals, they would be beaten out of the parish and if offences 

were repeated they could be sent to prison or hanged. JPs were 

instructed to survey the impotent poor so that it could be         

estimated how much money was needed for poor relief. 

 

In 1572 the first compulsory tax was imposed at a local level. Each 

parish had to provide for its own sick and poor.  Punishment for 

the mother and the reputed father of an illegitimate child was also 

instituted. In 1576 towns were required to acquire ‘ a competent 

stock of wool, hemp, flax, iron and other stuff’ for the poor to 

work on and houses of correction were to be set up for those who 

would not work so that they could be punished.  

 

By the 1590s the plight of the poor had worsened. There was a 

series of poor harvests which led to increased food prices; the loss of the infrastructure for supporting the poor 

owing to the closure of monasteries had to be addressed; the Reformation also brought in its wake a change in 

community values that had been so actively supported by the Church, and those actions that were part of the 

religious teachings – such as feed the hungry, clothe the naked, welcome the stranger- were passed to              

government as charitable giving had declined. However, in spite of social polarisation, the parable of Lazarus and 

Dives remained popular and there are examples of local bequests being given to the poor of our local   parishes. 

 

The 1597 Act gave JPs more power to levy funds and the position of overseer of the poor was created. The       

overseer’s job was to calculate the amount of poor rate for the parish, collect the poor rate from property      

owners, dispense money, clothes or food and supervise the poor house. 

 

The 1601 Act made provision for a national system to be paid for by levying property taxes and formalised earlier 

practices. This act exerted its influence up until 1834. 

 

http://www.elizabethan-era.org.uk/the-poor-law.htm 

http://www.workhouses.org.uk/poorlaws/ 

https://www.parliament.uk/vagabondact 

‘Slavery and Protector Somerset; the Vagrancy Act of 1547’, C. S. L. DAVIES, First published:December 1966,   

https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1468-0289.1966.tb00987.x  Citations: 7 https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/

abs/10.1111/j.1468-0289.1966.tb00987.x 

https://manyheadedmonster.wordpress.com/2015/05/04/the-beggar-and-the-rich-man-picturing-the-holy-poor-

in-tudor-and-early-stuart-england/  

Hand-drawn miscellany of Thomas Trevelyon (1608)  

Page 17



Page 1 of 2 
 

Tenterden Town Council 

Representation on outside organisations 
Report to the council meeting on 13 July 2020 by Cllr Justin Nelson 
 

Civil Society Conference 
Background: This is an initiative established by three members of the public to encourage volunteer and 
community organisations in the town to communicate and liaise with each other, so the community as a 
whole can be better aware of what each organisation is doing from time to time, and to enable 
organisations to help each other and the town council. It should be noted that there is no governance 
structure at present (though a CIO is to be formed).  Organisations are invited to send representatives, and 
to invite others (especially younger members of the community) to attend the periodic conferences, in order 
to provide updates on their own activities, hear updates from other representatives, and offer constructive 
suggestions. There is website currently, but information is available via www.mytenterden.co.uk 
 
Update:  

1 I understand (through the chamber of commerce committee) that the Civil Society organisers 
plan to organise a survey of local businesses, though I have no further details.  

2 There is no meeting of the Civil Society Conference currently planned 
 

Tenterden & District Chamber of Commerce 
Background: The chamber of commerce is a community interest company, TDCC Limited. Its committee 
normally meets monthly, and there are 6-weekly liaison meeting with the Town Clerk. When permitted by 
circumstances, it holds monthly networking meetings/workshop sessions, and other activities from time to 
time. Its website is at www.tenterdenchamber.org  
 
Update:  

1 The chamber’s committee’s meeting are still being held virtually, the last being on 24 June 
2 Cllr Mrs Smith has joined the chamber committee 
3 The chamber is preparing to re-launch the “Love Tenterden” card and is canvassing members 

and High Street shops for offers for cardholders 
4 The chamber is also planning a series of video interviews with members, oith to promote their 

businesses and to raise the profile of the chamber itself 
5 The AGM of the chamber is due on 28 July, and will be held virtually  

 

Tenterden Leisure Centre Trust 
Background: The trust is a limited company, Tenterden Leisure Centre Trust Limited (company number 
04457980) and a registered charity (number 1103179).  Its constitution provides for the town council to 
nominate two councillors to act as trustees; for the chamber of commerce, Ashford Borough Council and the 
leisure centre’s users’ group each to nominate one trustee; and for up to nine other trustees to be elected by 
the board of trustees.  The operational structure is not simple: the freehold interest in the site of the leisure 
centre is owned by the town council, who leased it to the borough council, who built the leisure centre and 
sub-leased it (but not the car parks) to the trust, who operate it via the medium of a management company, 
Serco. It has a page on the leisure centre’s website: 
https://www.tenterdenleisure.com/tenterden/ABOUT_Trust .  
 
Update:  

1 In the current crisis, meetings are limited to weekly meetings with representatives of Serco to 
report progress regarding preparations for re-opening when permitted to do so 

2 Serco have prepared a solid plan for re-opening safely – inevitably with fewer users attending 
than before the coronavirus crisis, to ensure appropriate distancing and protection measures 

Page 18

http://www.tenterdenchamber.org/
https://www.tenterdenleisure.com/tenterden/ABOUT_Trust


Page 2 of 2 
 

3 Serco are preparing for the implementation of the plan: signage has been installed for the one-
way systems to be followed and sanitisation arrangements and stations are in place, and staff 
will be equipped with appropriate PPE 

4 Plans for operating the centre once permitted to do so are complicated by – 
a. the fact that Serco’s agency agreement expires at the end of March 2021, with the 

procurement of a new operator’s contract suspended due to the coronavirus crisis 
b. Ashford Borough Council had taken over the procurement process, but the Trust currently 

has no idea what progress might have been made with this in the background or what 
alternatives ABC plans to put in place and 

c. the long-awaited replacement of the roof is now nearly ready to implement, which will 
cause further difficulties in operating the centre 

5 There is, therefore, the risk of re-opening the centre in (say) September – if permitted to do so 
– only to have to close it down again at the end of March due to the lack of a suitable operator, 
or perhaps sooner in view of the roof replacement works.  Meanwhile, of course, the Stour 
Centre will be closed for some time while extensive (and expensive) refurbishment works are 
carried out. 

 

Tenterden area cycling strategy steering group 
Background: The steering group is an ad hoc group of local residents interested in improving the cycling 
(and walking) facilities in and around Tenterden. It has no formal structure or governance and meets on an 
ad hoc basis to discuss and promote suitable suggestions for improvement. Its ambitions were given a huge 
boost by the production in July 2018 of a report by Sustrans on the existing and potential walking and 
cycling facilities in Tenterden, commissioned by the borough council as part of the county council’s “Kent 
Town Audits” programme.   
 
The report has been welcomed wholeheartedly by the steering group, subject to some suggestions for better 
improvements, in particular a “rural route” for the extension of the greenway currently running from 
Grange Road to the back of Drury Road, so that it follows the edges of the fields immediately the other side 
of the former and current railway track to reach the station then through Coombe Lane cemetery to reach 
Station Road car park, instead of the current route through Drury Road (and possibly Wells Close) to and 
along Turners Avenue, then Eastwell Barn Mews and Eastwell Meadows to the High Street. Assuming 
landowners agree to this, the main problem is a practical/financial one if a small valley, currently obscured 
by undergrowth, is steep enough to require bridging. To avoid that valley, the Sustrans representative 
wanted to look at the possibility of using the shoulder of the railway cutting for the cycle track. 
 
Update:  

1 Cycling improvement plans are still on hold pending the development by the Neighbourhood 
Plan steering committee of discussions with landowners generally – TCSSG does not want to 
interfere in that 

2 There have been no meetings or other activities since the previous report (in May) 
 

KCC parish forum for Tenterden ward 
Background: These meetings are arranged by KCC councillor Mike Hill, to update representatives of the 
parish councils in his ward and receive feedback and suggestions from them. They are held fairly 
infrequently: the last was on 22 October 2019, but the previous one was on 30 January 2019 
 
Update:  

1 None. 
 
Justin Nelson: 03 July 2020 

Page 19



Ashford Borough Citizens Advice 
Since Lockdown Citizens Advice have been running a telephone and Email service 6 days a week. The 
volunteers have been giving their additional time in lieu of not being able to offer face to face advice 
interviews during this period. From Monday however, they will recommence with face to face 
interviews 
 
The charity asks for support from and promotion to colleagues during this difficult time. and give 
assurance that their professional standards of advice remains the same, as does their ability to 
advise and support people with debt, welfare benefits, employment and legally aided housing 
cases.   
 
 
St Michaels Village Hall 
The hall will be cautiously reopening on Thursday 9th July on a very restrictive basis. This will be 
purely for non-exercise or sports activities which form a huge majority of the normal bookings. 
Procedures have been agreed with our regular users and appropriate signage will be in place prior to 
opening. We hope that in due course government will be able to permit further easement and this 
we are prepared for.  
 
 
Cllr. Ken Mulholland 
3rd July 2020 

Page 20


	Agenda
	8 KENT POLICE.
	9 REPORTS FROM APPOINTED TRUSTEES AND FROM COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES ON OTHER ORGANISATIONS.
	Tenterden & District Museum Newsletter July 2020
	TTC-Report to council-outside bodies-for July 2020 Council meeting
	Ashford Borough Citizens Advice & St Michaels Village Hall


